Wreck of the Segrid

An Account of the 1903 Recovery Operation off Ferryland Head

By Robert Parsons

William Costello, the lightkeeper at Ferryland Head, wasted no time hitching up his horse and cart and riding into town. It was just after dawn had spotted the wreckage of a schooner at the base of the cliffs at the mouth of the harbour. He journeyed the one mile  into the town of Ferryland and immediately broke the news to Mr. W. T. S. Carter, the Assistant Collector of Customs, and asked for help to look for survivors.

Soon four men (John Keefe, Valentine Keefe, James Barnable and Robert Shannahan) were readying their ropes and gear to help navigate the steep cliffs. Once everything was pre-pared, they set off and when they reached the site of the disaster they saw broken spars, sails, deck gear and clothing strewn about. There was no lifeboat in evidence, however, and at first they believed the crew had managed to row into another harbour. But they were wrong.

This was not the first time residents of Ferryland had experienced a shipwreck in their area. In 1856, the town's fishermen rescued the crew of the brigantine Heather, and were awarded £50 by the Government of Newfoundland. (The Heather was owned by Baine Johnson and Company and ran aground on a voyage from Baltimore to St. John's.) And on August 6, 1883, assistant lightkeeper Philip Keough of Ferryland single-handedly saved Captain Disney and the crew of the barquentine Octavia, which was bound from St. John's to Sydney. For his bravery, Keough was awarded a silver medal by Sir Frederick B. T. Carter on behalf of the Royal Humane Society.

This time, however, the Ferryland men would not be so fortunate. After arriving at the cliff side, John Keefe ventured down as far as possible without ropes to see what other belongings of the wreck might be drifting about. He saw the nearly naked body of a man, wedged in a gulch about 150 feet down from where he stood.

He called to the other three and soon they had him tied onto the rope and were lowering him down. The sea was rushing in and out of the gully, and it took John five attempts before he managed to reach the body and tie another rope around it.

By this time, others had gathered at the cliff top – including John W. Costello, Thomas Sullivan, James Keough and Daniel Keefe -- and they all helped pull the corpse up.

Then John Keefe spotted another body.

Before that Saturday was over, a total of five corpses, most of them badly mutilated by crashing waves, were recovered. One wore a ring engraved with the initials J. E., one was a black man and one was discovered almost completely severed in two. Eventually the remains were interred at Ferryland and the mystery behind the wreck began to unravel.

Some of the recovered wreckage had the words torrens, touekehyt and besti printed on it, leading the townsfolk to believe this was not a Newfoundland or British ship. Instead, it was discovered that the words were Danish for “cabin”, “chartroom” and “forecastle”. By Monday, December 7, Customs Officer Carter was able to tell the Minister of Marine and Fisheries in St. John's that the vessel was the Sigrid and that some of its official papers had been found near the wreck. It was from Denmark, registered at 80 tons and had carried five crew.

Soon more details of the Sigrid came to light as the ship and its crew, under the leadership of Captain Petersen, were well-known in Newfoundland waters. In late 1902, the Sigrid came to St. John's to load fish for Oporto, Portugal. (A. S. Rendell and Company of St. John's acted as its local agent.) In June 1903, the ship returned with sugar for A. H. Murray’s business and on July 24, she left St. John’s to go to  Philip Templeman’s premises at Bonavista to get a cargo of fish destined for Europe. On November 7, 1903, the Sigrid sailed in ballast from Spain, but it could only be surmised that, as she approached Newfoundland's Southern Shore in early December, there was dense fog. It sailed straight into a cliff at Ferryland Head and in few minutes went to pieces in the heavy sea. There was not even enough time to launch a lifeboat and the crew were doomed.

When the news of the Sigrid first reached St. John's, there just happened to be other Danish ships in the harbour at the time and three captains - Lindergard of the Carl, Yensin of the Nemesis and Rasmussen of the schooner Rasmussen - went to Ferryland to identify the bodies and collect the personal effects of the victims, which they would return to their bereaved families in Denmark.

The final words on one of Ferryland's worst calamities appeared in the local newspaper:

"Kind-heartedness and pluck are characteristics always associated with our fishermen. While it is not unusual for the people of Ferryland to put forth humane effort, the chronicling of that performed by those who recovered the bodies of the unfortunate seamen drowned from the Danish ship Sigrid is not less notable…Nothing definite on how the ship was lost, but loved ones have been recovered and, with decency and reverence, laid to rest in God's Acre in Ferryland."
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